# **Cherwell District Council**

# **Planning Committee**

Minutes of a meeting of the Planning Committee held at Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 15 May 2014 at 4.00 pm

Present: Councillor Rose Stratford (Chairman)

Councillor Alastair Milne Home (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ken Atack
Councillor Andrew Beere
Councillor Fred Blackwell
Councillor Tim Emptage
Councillor Michael Gibbard
Councillor Chris Heath
Councillor Russell Hurle

Councillor Mike Kerford-Byrnes Councillor James Macnamara Councillor G A Reynolds Councillor Gordon Ross Councillor Lawrie Stratford

Substitute Councillor Andrew Fulljames (In place of Councillor David

Members: Hughes)

Councillor Nigel Randall (In place of Councillor D M Pickford)

Also Councillor Les Sibley, Bicester West Ward Member, for agenda

Present: item 15

Apologies Councillor Colin Clarke
for Councillor David Hughes
absence: Councillor D M Pickford
Councillor Trevor Stevens

Officers: Bob Duxbury, Development Control Team Leader

Andrew Lewis, Senior Planning Officer Michelle Jarvis, Senior Planning Officer Stuart Howden, Assistant Planning Officer

Nigel Bell, Team Leader - Planning and Litigation /Deputy

**Monitoring Officer** 

Natasha Clark, Team Leader, Democratic and Elections

#### 281 **Declarations of Interest**

Members declared interests in the following agenda items:

# 7. Land At Camp Road Upper Heyford.

Councillor Andrew Fulljames, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Middleton Stoney Parish Council which had been consulted on the application.

Councillor James Macnamara, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Lower Heyford Parish Council which had been consulted on the application.

# 9. Land North West of Hill Cottage, Lower Heyford Road, Caulcott.

Councillor Andrew Fulljames, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Middleton Stoney Parish Council which had been consulted on the application.

Councillor James Macnamara, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Lower Heyford Parish Council which had been consulted on the application.

# 10. Land And Former Buildings UH11 442 465 466 467 468 470 471 481 492 493 529 593 596 Dow Street, Upper Heyford.

Councillor James Macnamara, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Lower Heyford Parish Council which had been consulted on the application.

#### 12. Deerfields Farm, Canal Lane, Bodicote.

Councillor G A Reynolds, Declaration, as an the applicant was a fellow Executive member and would abstain from voting on the item.

# 15. 1 Hemingway Drive, Bicester, OX26 2FY.

Councillor Rose Stratford, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Bicester Town Council which had been consulted on the application.

# 17. 1 Almshouses, Church Street, Kidlington.

Councillor Tim Emptage, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Kidlington Parish Council which had been consulted on the application.

# 18. 4 Almshouses, Church Street, Kidlington.

Councillor Tim Emptage, Non Statutory Interest, as a member of Kidlington Parish Council which had been consulted on the application.

#### 282 Requests to Address the Meeting

The Chairman advised that requests to address the meeting would be dealt with at each item.

#### 283 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

#### 284 **Minutes**

The Minutes of the meeting held on 24 April 2014 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

#### 285 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman's announcements.

# 286 Land At Camp Road Upper Heyford

The Committee considered application 13/01599/F for a change of use of the eastern part of southern taxi way for use in connection with established and lawful car processing operations.

Stephen Bowtree, the applicant, addressed the Committee in support of the application.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report, written update, presentation and the presentation of the public speaker.

#### Resolved

That application 13/01599/F be approved, subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- 2. At the expiration of 5 years from the date hereof the use specified in your application shall be discontinued and the land shall be restored to its former condition on or before that date.
- 3. Except where otherwise stipulated by conditions attached to this permission, the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans:
  - Area Plan-P0754 19/1C
  - Security Plan-P0754 22/1
- 4. The development shall not be commenced until a lighting strategy has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority and the strategy shall be implemented in accordance with the details as approved unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 5. The area of the application site comprising open hardstanding identified for car processing (defined so as to comprise the inspection, valeting, washing, repairing, tyre replacement, processing and delivery of cars and other car processing activities as may be required from time to time) shall only be used for activity which is related to car processing, and specifically shall not be used for the parking of any other vehicle associated with any other use or activity present on the application site.
- 6. No car rental or related activities for use by members of the public shall be permitted from the identified car processing area.

- 7. The development shall not be commenced until a scheme and programme for the provision of security for the car processing area including below ground pressure sensors and infra-red cameras and the removal of the existing concrete rings shall be submitted for approval to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. Thereafter the approved scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details
- 8. Within three months of the date of this permission a detailed green travel plan shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The travel plan shall be prepared in accordance with the Department of Transport's Best Practice Guidance Note "Using the planning process to secure travel plans" and the emerging Oxfordshire County Council guidance on Developer Travel Plans, and shall include an GHV routeing agreement, also covering the construction phases and including a timetable for its implementation. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the Travel Plan as approved.
- 9. Before development commences any vehicle within the car processing area over 1.45metres in height shall be parked in a designated area the details of which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning authority and in no other area when not required for specific processing activities.
- 10. Full details of the enclosures along all boundaries and within the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the approved means of enclosure shall be erected, in accordance with the approved details prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved.

# 287 Bagnalls Ltd, Station Road, Enslow, Kidlington, OX5 3AX

The Committee considered application 13/01688/F, a retrospective application for the erection of a covered saw shed.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report and presentation.

### Resolved

That application 13/061688/F be approved, subject to the following:

 That the rated levels of noise emitted from the stone cutting shed does not exceed background when measured in accordance with British Standard BS 4142:1997 Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas at Station House Station Road Enslow, Kidlington OX5 3AX

# 288 Land North West of Hill Cottage, Lower Heyford Road, Caulcott

The Committee considered application 13/01802/F for the change of use of land to provide 5 Romani Gypsy pitches and associated works including the construction of 5 day rooms, provision of 5 septic tanks and the laying of hardstanding.

Richard Bennett, a local resident, address the Committee in objection to the application.

Anne-Marie Smith, the applicant, addressed the Committee in support of the application.

Councillor Macnamara proposed that application 13/01802/F be refused on the grounds the site was inappropriate and unsustainable with no access to amenities, would have a detrimental impact on the adjacent property and risk of flooding on the site. Councillor Kerford-Byrnes seconded the proposal.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report and presentation and the presentations of the public speakers.

#### Resolved

That application 13/01802/F be refused for the following reasons:

- 1. The proposal is contrary to Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and the Planning Policy for Traveller Sites, and Policy BSC6 of the submitted Cherwell Local Plan (January 2014) insofar as the site is remote and in open countryside and does not have good access to health, education and other facilities and therefore constitutes unsustainable development. As the Council can demonstrate that it has an up to date GTAA which indicates that the Council has more than a five year supply of sites for gypsies and travellers it is considered that it would be inappropriate to allow a site that fails to meet the locational and sustainability criteria of the above policies.
- 2. The proposal is likely to have a detrimental impact upon the residential amenities of the adjacent Hill House and would be contrary to Government guidance contained with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy C30 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan.
- 3. The site is subject to flooding and the Council is not convinced that a satisfactory scheme to avoid flooding can be formulated and therefore fails to comply with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework and the Planning Policy for Traveller Sites, and Policy BSC6 of the submitted Cherwell Local Plan (January 2014).

# 289 Land And Former Buildings UH11 442 465 466 467 468 470 471 481 492 493 529 593 596 Dow Street, Upper Heyford

The Committee considered application 13/01811/OUT, an outline application for up to 60 dwellings and public open space with associated works with all matters reserved.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report, written update and presentation.

#### Resolved

That application 13/01811/OUT be approved, subject to

- i) The applicant entering into a section 106 agreement with the District and County Council.
- ii) The following conditions:
- That no development shall be commenced until full details of the layout, scale, appearance, access and landscaping (hereafter referred to as reserved matters) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Plans and particulars of the reserved matters referred to above shall be carried out as approved.
- 2. That in the case of the reserved matters, application for approval shall be made not later than the expiration of six years beginning with the date of this permission.
- 3. That the development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last reserved matters to be approved.
- 3. No reserved matters applications shall be made until a Design Code and Regulatory Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The Design Code shall comprise:

- i) Land use, density, layout of streets and public spaces and character areas:
- ii) Landscape, including for the immediate setting of the new settlement, to include retained trees and vegetation, new planting, public open space, amenity space, children's' play areas, sports facilities, footpaths, public spaces, together with adoption arrangements and extent;
- iii)Surface water control, including design standards and methodology for sustainable drainage systems, details of specific features, including appropriate options for Sustainable Urban Drainage, swales, together with adoption arrangements and extent;

- iv) Public realm, including hierarchy of streets and public spaces, characteristics, dimensions, building line and or set backs, materials, means of enclosure, street furniture, including street lighting, and car parking, methods to control traffic speeds and create legibility, together with adoption arrangements and extent:
- v) Built form, including scale, materials, roof treatment, elevational treatment, treatment of landmark and marker buildings, key frontages and gateways;
- vi) Sustainable design, including the measures to be incorporated to ensure that the development complies with at least the minimum Code Level required by the Building Regulations in the Code for Sustainable Homes and to assess the impact this would have on appearance; vii) Car and cycle parking, including standards of provision by land use and dwelling type; and
- viii) Waste recycling, including how the Councils standards for individual householders' waste and recycling bins are to be accommodated within the dwelling curtilage and refuse vehicle access to these obtained.

The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved Design Code.

- 5. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme for landscaping the site shall include:-
  - (a) details of the proposed tree and shrub planting including their species, number, sizes and positions, together with grass seeded/turfed areas, (b) details of the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained as well as those to be felled, including existing and proposed soil levels at the base of each tree/hedgerow and the minimum distance between the base of the tree and the nearest edge of any excavation,
  - (c) details of the hard surface areas, including pavements, pedestrian areas, reduced-dig areas, crossing points and steps.
- 6. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with BS 4428:1989 Code of Practice for general landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces), or the most up to date and current British Standard, in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s) or on the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees, herbaceous planting and shrubs which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the current/next planting season with others of similar size and species.
- 7. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a landscape management plan, to include the timing of the implementation of the plan, long term design objectives, management responsibilities, maintenance schedules and procedures for the replacement of failed planting for all landscape areas, other than for privately owned, domestic gardens, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the landscape management plan shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

- 8. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved full details of the provision, landscaping and treatment of open space/play space within the site together with a timeframe for its provision shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the open space/play space shall be landscaped, laid out and completed in accordance with the approved details and retained at all times as open space/play space.
- 9. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a desk study and site walk over to identify all potential contaminative uses on site, and to inform the conceptual site model shall be carried out by a competent person and in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development shall take place until the Local Planning Authority has given its written approval that it is satisfied that no potential risk from contamination has been identified.
- 10. If a potential risk from contamination is identified as a result of the work carried out under condition 9 prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a comprehensive intrusive investigation in order to characterise the type, nature and extent of contamination present, the risks to receptors and to inform the remediation strategy proposals shall be documented as a report undertaken by a competent person and in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development shall take place unless the Local Planning Authority has given its written approval that it is satisfied that the risk from contamination has been adequately characterised as required by this condition.
- 11. If contamination is found by undertaking the work carried out under condition 10 prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a scheme of remediation and/or monitoring to ensure the site is suitable for its proposed use shall be prepared by a competent person and in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11' and submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No development shall take place until the Local Planning Authority has given its written approval of the scheme of remediation and/or monitoring required by this condition.
- 12. If remedial works have been identified in condition 11 the development shall not be occupied until the remedial works have been carried out in accordance with the scheme approved under condition 12. A verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

- 13. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present at the site, no further development shall be carried out until full details of a remediation strategy detailing how the unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the remediation strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
- 14. The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time as a scheme to dispose of surface water (that should ensure that no soakaways are constructed in contaminated land) has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved.
- 15. That prior the first occupation of any part of the development hereby permitted fire hydrants shall be provided or enhanced on the site in accordance with details to be first submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 16. All site clearance (including vegetation removal) should be timed so as to avoid the bird nesting/breeding season between March-August
- 17. Details of the location of all compounds and the associated areas for plant storage and access thereto, as well as a scheme for their subsequent removal and restoration of the land, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to their establishment. The compounds and accesses shall be located and subsequently removed in accordance with the approved details.
- 18. No development shall be undertaken until such time as wheel washing facilities have been provided in accordance with details that have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 19. During the course of building operations or construction works on the site and at all reasonable times, the developer shall afford access to any archaeologist nominated by the Local Planning Authority and shall allow him/her to observe the excavations and record items of interest and finds.
- 20. Prior to any demolition on the site, the commencement of the development and any archaeological investigation, a professional archaeological organisation/building recorder acceptable to the Local Planning Authority shall carry out a full recording of the building concerned and submit the completed record to the Local Planning Authority.

# 290 Land South East Of Quarry Farm Oxford Road, Adderbury

The Committee considered application 13/01814/F for the installation of 2.No turbines both at a total height of approximately 35 metres and a height to the hub of approximately 23 metres.

Jodie Kane, the applicant, addressed the Committee in support of the application.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report and presentation and the address of the public speaker.

#### Resolved

That application 13/01814/F be approved, subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- 2. Except where otherwise stipulated by condition, the application shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans and documents:
  - Site Location Plan submitted with the application;
  - Site Location Inclusive of Access Route submitted with the application;
  - Design, Access & Planning Statement submitted with the application;
  - 'Northern Power 100; Community Wind Turbine for Businesses, Schools & Farms' submitted with the application;
  - Drawing Number 1013417 Revision C submitted with the application;
  - UWMBL0001805 Quarry Farm Photomontages received on 9 January 2014;
  - UWMBL0001805 Quarry Farm Additional Photomontages received on 28 January 2014;
  - UWMBL0001805 Quarry Farm Additional Wirelines received on 28 January 2014;
  - UWMBL0001805 Quarry Farm Shadow Flicker Map received on 28 January 2014;
  - UWMBL0001805 Quarry Farm Noise Plot Map received on 28 January 2014;
  - Equestrian Statement received on 10 February 2014;
  - Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment received on 10 February 2014:
  - Access Route Clearance Dimensions and Crane Dimensions received on 18 March 2014;
  - Wind Turbine Acoustic Noise Test Report Noise Test Report NPS 100-24-UK' dated 12 December 2013 by Cadmus received on 19 March 2014;
  - Northern Power Systems 100-24 Noise Information dated December 2013 received on 19 March 2014;
  - NPS 100-24 UK Warrant Letter dated 29 January 2014 received on 19 March 2014;
  - E-mail from applicant regarding container received on 19 March 2014;
  - E-mail from applicant regarding the access track received on 25 March 2014;
  - E-mail from applicant regarding the access track received on 9 April 2014.
- 3. No development shall take place until details of the external colours and finishes of the development hereby approved have been submitted to and

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be carried out as approved and the agreed colours and finishes shall not be change without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

- 4. No development shall take place until details of the form of the foundations of the development hereby approved have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be carried out as approved and the agreed colours and finishes shall not be change without the prior written consent of the Local Planning Authority.
- 5. Prior to the commencement of development, a construction traffic management plan must be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the District Planning Authority. The construction works must be carried out in accordance with the details approved in the construction traffic management plan.
- 6. No development shall take place until a construction method statement has been submitted and approved by the Local Planning Authority, including measures to secure:
  - i. The monitoring and control of noise, vibration and dust caused by construction activity on the site;
  - ii. Control of pollution or sedimentation and responding to any spillages or contamination during the construction phase, including among other things oil interceptors to serve vehicle parking and hardstanding areas;
  - iii. That no construction machinery shall be operated on the site, no process carried out on the site and no construction related traffic shall enter or leave the site other than between 08:00 and 13:00 on Saturdays or between 07:30 and 18:00 on Mondays to Fridays unless previously approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, with no deliveries on Sundays or on Bank or other public Holidays;
  - iv. Details of wheel washing equipment to ensure that no material is deposited on the nearby roads from vehicles travelling from the site;
  - v. The use of impervious bases and impervious bund walls to areas used for the storage of oils, fuels or chemicals on the site;
  - vi. Removal of the construction compound and all temporary buildings and the reinstatement of the whole of the site not subject to built development all within 6 months of the date on which the development first provided electricity;
  - vii. The use of only approved routes to and from the site by traffic associated with the construction of the development hereby approved, or its decommissioning, and arrangements for parking and access at the site and for the storage of plan and materials there;
  - viii. Arrangements for outdoor artificial lighting (if necessary) so as to prevent nuisance to surrounding properties.

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved construction method statement.

- 7. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, an Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS), undertaken in accordance with BS:5837:2012 and all subsequent amendments and revisions shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, all works on site shall be carried out in accordance with the approved AMS.
- 8. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, full details of a scheme of supervision for the arboricultural protection measures, to include the requirements set out in a) to e) below, and which is appropriate for the scale and duration of the development works, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the arboricultural protection measures shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.
  - a) Written confirmation of the contact details of the project arboriculturalist employed to undertake the supervisory role of relevant arboricultural issues;
  - b) The relevant persons/contractors to be briefed by the project arboriculturalist on all on-site tree related matters;
  - c) The timing and methodology of scheduled site monitoring visits to be undertaken by the project arboriculturalist;
  - d) The procedures for notifying and communicating with the Local Planning Authority when dealing with unforeseen variations to the agreed tree works and arboricultural incidents;
  - e) Details of appropriate supervision for the installation of load-bearing 'structural cell' planting pits and/or associated features such as irrigation systems, root barriers and surface requirements (eg: reduced dig systems, arboresin, tree grills).
- 9. Prior to any demolition on the site, the commencement of the development and any archaeological investigation, a professional archaeological organisation acceptable to the Local Planning Authority shall prepare a first stage archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation, relating to the application area, which shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 10. Prior to any demolition on the site and the commencement of the development and following the approval of the first stage Written Scheme of Investigation referred to in condition 9, a programme of archaeological evaluation, investigation and recording of the application area shall be carried out by the commissioned archaeological organisation in accordance with the approved first stage Written Scheme of Investigation.
- 11. Prior to any demolition on the site, the commencement of the development and following the completion of the archaeological evaluation, investigation and recording referred to in condition 10, a report of the archaeological evidence found on the application site and full details of a second stage Written Scheme of Investigation based on the findings, including a programme of methodology, site investigation and recording, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- 12. Prior to any demolition on the site (other than in accordance with the second stage Written Scheme of Investigation) and prior to the

commencement of the development the further programme of archaeological investigation shall be carried out and fully completed in accordance with the second stage Written Scheme of Investigation approved under condition 11. All post excavation work including all processing, research and analysis necessary to produce an accessible and useable archive and its deposition, and a full report for publication, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the second stage Written Scheme of Investigation approved under condition 11 as soon as practically possible after the completion of the on site investigation.

- 13. No development shall take place until details of a nominated representative to act as a point of contact for the public and be available by convenient means on at least six days each week shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The applicant shall notify the Local Planning Authority of any change to the nominated representative. The approved representative shall work within the approved details and shall have responsibility for liaison with the Local Planning Authority in dealing with any noise complaints arising from the development during the period from start of work to completion of final site restoration. In the event that the Local Planning Authority has given written notice to the wind farm operator three times in any 12-month period that it finds the nominated representative to be not working within the approved details, the wind turbine operator shall replace the nominated representative, within two weeks of receipt of the third written notice, with an alternative who has been approved by the Local Planning Authority.
- 14. Within the first available planting season following the occupation of the building, or on the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, the existing hedgerow along the south west boundary of the field in which the turbines will be sited shall be reinforced by additional planting in accordance with a detailed scheme which shall firstly be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, any plant/tree within the hedgerow which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development dies, is removed or becomes seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the current/next planting season with others of similar size and species in accordance with BS 4428:1989 Code of practice for general landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces) or the most up to date and current British Standard). Thereafter the new planting shall be properly maintained in accordance with this condition.
- 15. The development hereby approved shall not be brought into use until written notice, signed by a Member of the Institution of Structural Engineers, has been provided to the local planning authority to the following effect:
  - I. That the manufacture of the wind turbines conforms to European Standard IEC61 400-1: and
  - II. That the design and installation of the installation as a whole has been carried out in compliance with BS EN 61400-1:2005 Wind turbines Design requirements.

The maintenance operation and removal of the installation as a whole shall comply with BS EN 61400-1:2005.

- 16. Written confirmation of the date on which the development first provided electricity shall be given to the local planning authority within one month of that event. The development hereby permitted shall be removed on or before the twenty-fifth anniversary of the date on which the development first provided electricity, and the land restored to its former condition in accordance with a restoration scheme submitted not later than the twenty-fourth such anniversary to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The restoration scheme shall include, among other things, a timescale for the restoration of the site after the removal of the development, a description of the measures to be taken in the demolition and removal of the development hereby permitted and of the measures to be taken to ensure that contemporary standards of pollution control and protection of public and neighbouring interests will be met.
- 17. If any wind turbine hereby approved fails to provide electricity for a continuous period of 9 months then a scheme for the decommissioning and removal of the failed turbine and any other ancillary equipment and structures relating solely to that turbine shall be submitted within 2 months to the local planning authority for their written approval. If the turbine remains failed at the end of a continuous 12-month period (including the initial 9 months previously mentioned) then it shall be removed in accordance with the approved decommissioning scheme. The decommissioning scheme shall set the timescale for removal.
- 18. All turbine blades shall rotate in the same direction.
- 19. All cabling on the site and from the wind farm shall be underground.

# 291 Deerfields Farm, Canal Lane, Bodicote

The Committee considered application 14/00460/F for the erection of one three bedroom dwelling situated to the south west of Deerfields Farm House between the barn and the house along the same building line. The application was a resubmission of application 13/00823/F.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report, written update and presentation.

# Resolved

That application 14/00260/F be approved, subject to the following conditions:

- The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- 2. Except where otherwise stipulated by condition, the application shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans and documents:

- application forms, planning design and access statement, site location plan and amended block plan drawing number 13:3571:4 and proposed floor plans/ elevations drawing number 13:3571:3A.
- 3. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a stone sample panel (minimum 1m2 in size) shall be constructed on site in natural local, which shall be inspected and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the external walls of the development shall be laid, dressed, coursed and pointed in strict accordance with the approved stone sample panel.
- 4. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, samples of the tile to be used in the construction of the roof of the development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the samples so approved.
- 5. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, full specification details (including construction, layout, surfacing and drainage) of the parking and manoeuvring areas shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, and prior to the first occupation of the development, the parking and manoeuvring areas shall be provided on the site in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained unobstructed except for the parking and manoeuvring of vehicles at all times thereafter.
- 6. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme for landscaping the site shall include:-
  - (a) details of the proposed tree and shrub planting including their species, number, sizes and positions, together with grass seeded/turfed areas,(b) details of the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained as well as those to be felled, including existing and proposed soil levels at the base of each tree/hedgerow and the minimum distance between the base of the tree and the nearest edge of any excavation,
  - (c) details of the hard surface areas, including pavements, pedestrian areas, reduced-dig areas, crossing points and steps.
- 7. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with BS 4428:1989 Code of Practice for general landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces), or the most up to date and current British Standard, in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s) or on the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees, herbaceous planting and shrubs which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the current/next planting season with others of similar size and species.
- 8. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a detailed scheme for the surface water and foul sewage drainage of the

development shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, and prior to the commencement of any building works on the site the approved surface water drainage scheme shall be carried out and prior to the first occupation of any building to which the scheme relates the approved foul sewage drainage scheme shall be implemented. All drainage works shall be laid out and constructed in accordance with the Water Authorities Association's current edition "Sewers for Adoption".

### 292 Chequers Tree Farm, Ells Lane, Bloxham

The Committee considered application 14/00439/F for a change of use of a paddock to allow the land to be used for agricultural purposes, the erection of a polytunnel and use of existing stables as office/mess and general storage.

Mr John Wyatt, the applicant, addressed the Committee in support of the application.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report, written update and presentation and the address of the public speaker.

#### Resolved

That application 14/00349/F be approved, subject to the following conditions:

- 1. That the development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- Except where otherwise stipulated by conditions attached to this
  permission, the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance
  with the following approved plans: site location plan; block plan;
  office/store plan; and PL-CS1-135098-0001 0.
- 3. That the bricks to be used in the conversion of the building hereby permitted shall match in terms of colour, type and texture those used on the existing building.
- 4. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme for landscaping the site shall include:-
  - (a)details of the proposed tree and shrub planting including their species, number, sizes and positions, together with grass seeded/turfed areas,
  - (b)details of the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained as well as those to be felled, including existing and proposed soil levels at the base of each tree/hedgerow and the minimum distance between the base of the tree and the nearest edge of any excavation,
  - (c) details of the hard surface areas, including pavements, pedestrian areas, reduced-dig areas, crossing points and steps.

- 5. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with BS 4428:1989 Code of Practice for general landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces), or the most up to date and current British Standard, in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s) or on the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees, herbaceous planting and shrubs which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the current/next planting season with others of similar size and species.
- 6. Except to allow for the means of access and vision splays the existing hedgerow along the southern boundary of the site shall be retained and properly maintained at a height of not less than 4.0 m metres, and if any hedgerow plant dies within five years from the completion of the development it shall be replaced and shall thereafter be properly maintained in accordance with this condition.
- 7. The existing hedgerow along the western boundary of the site shall be retained and properly maintained at a height of not less than 4.0 metres, and if any hedgerow plant dies within five years from the completion of the development it shall be replaced and shall thereafter be properly maintained in accordance with this condition.
- 8. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, full details of the means of access between the land and the highway, including, position, layout, construction, drainage and vision splays shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the means of access shall be constructed and retained in accordance with the approved details.
- 9. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a plan showing car parking provision for vehicles to be accommodated within the site, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, and prior to the first occupation of the development, the parking spaces shall be laid out, surfaced, drained and completed in accordance with the approved details and shall be retained for the parking of vehicles at all times thereafter.

# 293 Chequers Tree Farm, Ells Lane, Bloxham

The Committee considered application 14/00402/F for a change of use to allow the land to be used for agricultural purposes and the erection of a polytunnel.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report and presentation.

#### Resolved

That application 14/00402/F be approved, subject to

- 1. That the development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- 2. Except where otherwise stipulated by conditions attached to this permission, the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following approved plans: site location plan; block plan; and PL-CS1-135098-0001 0.
- 3. Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme for landscaping the site shall include:-
  - (a) details of the proposed tree and shrub planting including their species, number, sizes and positions, together with grass seeded/turfed areas,
  - (b) details of the existing trees and hedgerows to be retained as well as those to be felled, including existing and proposed soil levels at the base of each tree/hedgerow and the minimum distance between the base of the tree and the nearest edge of any excavation,
  - (c) details of the hard surface areas, including pavements, pedestrian areas, reduced-dig areas, crossing points and steps.
- 4. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with BS 4428:1989 Code of Practice for general landscape operations (excluding hard surfaces), or the most up to date and current British Standard, in the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s) or on the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner. Any trees, herbaceous planting and shrubs which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the current/next planting season with others of similar size and species.
- 5. Except to allow for the means of access and vision splays the existing hedgerow along the southern boundary of the site shall be retained and properly maintained at a height of not less than 4.0 m metres, and if any hedgerow plant dies within five years from the completion of the development it shall be replaced and shall thereafter be properly maintained in accordance with this condition.
- 6. The existing hedgerow along the western boundary of the site shall be retained and properly maintained at a height of not less than 4.0 metres, and if any hedgerow plant dies within five years from the completion of the development it shall be replaced and shall thereafter be properly maintained in accordance with this condition.

# 294 1 Hemingway Drive, Bicester, OX26 2FY

The Committee considered application 14/00148/F for a rear single story extension and garage conversion.

Councillor Les Sibley, local ward member, addressed the Committee.

Mr James Ferguson, a local resident, addressed the Committee in objection to the application.

Councillor Hurle proposed that application 14/00418/F be approved. Councillor Gibbard seconded the proposal. The motion was duly voted on and lost.

Councillor Lawrie Stratford proposed that application 14/00418/F be refused for the reasons set out in the officers' report. Councillor Reynolds seconded the proposal.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report, written update and presentation and the addressed of the local ward member and public speaker.

#### Resolved

That application 14/00418/F be refused for the following reasons:

- 1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- Except where otherwise stipulated by condition, the application shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans and documents: Application Forms, Site Location Plan and Drawing Numbers 1 and 2 submitted with the application and E-mail from agent received on 2 May 2014.

# 295 Yarnton Manor, Church Lane, Yarnton, Kidlington, OX5 1PY

The Committee considered application 14/00444/F for the change of Use of The Manor House (Grade II\*) to form a single residential dwelling and the change of use of The Barn, Guest House, Apple Loft and Orangery to provide ancillary residential accommodation.

In reaching their decision, the Committee considered the officers' report and presentation.

#### Resolved

That application 14/00444/F be approved, subject to the following conditions:

- 1. The development to which this permission relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.
- Except where otherwise stipulated by condition, the application shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the following plans and documents: Application forms, Planning Statement dated March 2014, Yarnton Manor 'Zone 1: Manor House, The Barn, The Orangery, Apple Loft and Guest

House Heritage Statement' dated March 2014, Yarnton Manor Historic Building Assessment dated March 2014 and Site location plan (1018805-14-01).

# 296 1 Almshouses, Church Street, Kidlington

The Committee considered application 14/00467/LB, listed building consent for works associated with the removal of a bath and insertion of a new shower.

In reaching their decision the Committee considered the officers' report and presentation.

#### Resolved

That application 14/00467/LB be approved subject to the following conditions:

- The works to which this consent relates shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this consent. Reason -To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
- 2. Except where otherwise stipulated by conditions attached to this permission, the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the planning application forms, Design and Access Statement and the following approved plans; CHR2014/AJS/1AHK. Reason: For the avoidance of doubt, to ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority, and in accordance with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework
- 3. All works of making good shall be carried out in materials and detailed to match the adjoining existing fabric except where shown otherwise on the approved drawings. Reason To ensure that the completed development is in keeping with and conserves the special character of the existing historic building and to comply with Policy C18 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

# 4 Almshouses, Church Street, Kidlington

The Committee considered application 14/00468/LB, listed building consent for works associated with the removal of a bath and insertion of a new shower.

In reaching their decision the Committee considered the officers' report and presentation.

# Resolved

That application 14/00468/LB be approved subject to the following conditions:

- The works to which this consent relates shall be begun not later than the
  expiration of three years beginning with the date of this consent. Reason To comply with the provisions of Section 18 of the Planning (Listed
  Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, as amended by Section 51
  of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
- 2. Except where otherwise stipulated by conditions attached to this permission, the development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the planning application forms, Design and Access Statement and the following approved plans; CHR2014/AJS/4AHK. Reason: For the avoidance of doubt, to ensure that the development is carried out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority, and in accordance with Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.
- 3. All works of making good shall be carried out in materials and detailed to match the adjoining existing fabric except where shown otherwise on the approved drawings. Reason To ensure that the completed development is in keeping with and conserves the special character of the existing historic building and to comply with Policy C18 of the adopted Cherwell Local Plan and Government guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.

# 298 Quarterly Performance Report

The Committee considered a report which informed Members of the overall performance and level of activity in the Development Management service and of the progress of outstanding formal enforcement cases

#### Resolved

(1) That the report be noted.

# 299 Decisions Subject to Various Requirements

The Committee considered a report which updated Members on decisions which were subject to various requirements.

#### Resolved

(1) That the report be noted.

# 300 Appeals Progress Report

The Committee considered a report which updated Members on application which had been determined by the Council, where new appeals had been lodged, hearings scheduled or appeal results achieved.

# Resolved

(1) That the report be no	oted.
---------------------------	-------

The meeting ended at  $7.20\ pm$ 

Chairman:

Date: